Deploying Operating System Images on Latitude™ and Precision™ E-Series Systems using Microsoft® System Center Configuration Manager 2007

A Dell[™] Best Practices Paper

Dell OpenManage™ Systems Management By Sandeep Karandikar

Dell Product Group May 2009



THIS WHITE PAPER IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY, AND MAY CONTAIN TYPOGRAPHICAL ERRORS AND TECHNICAL INACCURACIES. THE CONTENT IS PROVIDED AS IS, WITHOUT EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND.

© 2009 Dell Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any manner whatsoever without the express written permission of Dell, Inc. is strictly forbidden. For more information, contact Dell.

Dell, the DELL logo, Latitude, and OpenManage are trademarks of Dell Inc. Microsoft, Windows, and Windows Vista are either trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Other trademarks and trade names may be used in this document to refer to either the entities claiming the marks and names or their products. Dell Inc. disclaims any proprietary interest in trademarks and trade names other than its own.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEPLOYING OPERATING SYSTEM IMAGES ON LATITUDE™ AND PRECISION™ E-SERIES SYSTEMS USING MICROSOFT®
SYSTEM CENTER CONFIGURATION MANAGER 20071
DELL OPENMANAGE™1
SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT1
INTRODUCTION4
DELL CLIENT SYSTEM DEPLOYMENT CAB OVERVIEW
CONTENT STRUCTURING
MS SCCM 2007 OPERATIONAL DETAILS 8
WINPE DRIVER MANAGEMENT
SETTING UP HARDWARE-AGNOSTIC BOOT CONTROLLER
STEP14
APPLY QFE/HOTFIX IN OSD TASK SEQUENCE
PUTTING IT ALL-TOGETHER 19
CAB EDITING TOOLS
SUPPORTED DELL HARDWARE AND OPERATING SYSTEMS. 20
SUMMARY 22
REFERENCES

Introduction

IT departments typically manage a heterogeneous mix of decentralized client hardware and various software applications. Administration of large scale enterprises requires the use of centralized systems management processes that use consistent methods for managing the diverse network clients. Some typical I/T administrator activities involve deploying standardized corporate operating system images to client hardware, and using a consistent mechanism to gather application software, hardware, and operating systems (OS) information across the network from a central management console.

The Dell[™] Client System Deployment CAB provides the mechanism for an I/T administrator to rapidly develop and deploy a customized corporate image on Dell client systems. This whitepaper provides an overview of using the operating systems deployment capabilities of <u>Microsoft System</u> <u>Center Configuration Manager (SCCM) 2007</u>[™] to deploy a customized OS image on Dell client systems in a heterogeneous environment.

The intended audiences for this paper are I/T and network administrators or managers who need to understand the intricacies of creating and deploying their own customized images on Dell client systems.

Dell Client System Deployment CAB Overview

Microsoft System Center Configuration Manager 2007 (MS SCCM) provides centralized systems management capabilities for OS deployment, security patch management, application deployment and asset management using the Windows® Management Services Integration (MSI). This article will discuss how to use the SCCM operating system deployment function to deploy your corporate image on Dell hardware.

The Dell Client System Deployment CAB files that are now available on the Dell support Website offer new levels of ease and flexibility for creating and deploying customized OS images on Dell Latitude E-Series systems.

The key capabilities provided by the Dell Client Systems Deployment CAB are:

- All system applicable drivers in a single archive
- The flexibility to manage and deploy corporate standard images on Dell client systems

With the Dell Client Systems Deployment CAB, an I/T Administrator can perform the following tasks:

- Use Microsoft Windows OS-based PnP enumeration capabilities to install drivers for applicable devices
- Create a system-level optimized deployment sequence
- Setup an appropriate boot control sequence
- Optimize the deployment of targeted system-specific driver packages

Content Structuring

All Dell CABs use the following file naming structure: <Model>-<OS>-<Version>.cab. So for a Windows Vista® OS CAB for an E4300 Latitude notebook would be named: E4300-Vista-A00.cab. Any of the system CABs can be viewed and/or edited using either Windows Explorer and/or the cabinet SDK tools available for download from the Microsoft Website.

A typical system cabinet file structure for a Latitude E4300 notebook is displayed in Figure 1.

🔓 C:\Dell\E4300-Vista-A00.CA	В			
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> vorites	<u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			2
🚱 Back 🝷 🏐 👻 🥬 Sear	ch 🌔 Folders 🛛 🕞 🛛	» 🗙 🍤 🛄 -		
Address 🚼 C:\Dell\E4300-Vista-A	00.CAB		_	Go
Name Size	Туре	Date	Path 🔺	
🖬 🖬 IntcHdmi.sys 🛛 124 KB	System file	6/30/2008 12:52 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
🛛 🎒 kit 14870.cat 233 KB	Security Catalog	8/8/2008 8:33 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
🛛 🎒 kit 14870. inf 73 KB	Setup Information	8/7/2008 6:45 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
🛛 🛐 oemdspif.dll 🛛 🛛 68 KB	Application Extension	7/11/2008 4:51 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
🗌 🖬 release.dat 1 KB	DAT File	3/30/2009 3:13 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
📔 🗐 Version.txt 1 KB	Text Document	9/17/2008 12:03 PM	E4300\vista\x64\video\R195366\	
🛛 🔊 AESTAC64.dll 👘 158 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
🛛 🔊 AESTACap.dll 🛛 135 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
🛛 🛐 AESTAR64.dll 🛛 🛛 66 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTARen.dll 59 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTCo64.dll 75 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTCom.dll 72 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTEC64.dll 430 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
🛛 💽 AESTECap.dll 🛛 368 KB	Application Extension	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTSr64.exe 87 KB	Application	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	
AESTSrv.exe 80 KB	Application	12/1/2008 11:40 PM	E4300\vista\x86\audio\R205446\	-
↓				
1,004 objects				

Figure 1: Typical system cabinet file structure

Organizations usually provide standardized Windows OS support on a single platform. With that in mind, the 32-bit(x86) and 64-bit(x64) support files are combined into a single CAB file for convenience.

Package Information

Once the CAB is extracted, the readme.txt and Manifest.xml included in the CAB provides additional content details. The manifest file includes specifics such as:

- Driver versions
- Release date
- Support devices in that particular release

The readme.txt and manifest.xml file location is displayed in Figure 2.

😂 C:\Dell\¥ista Drivers Package\E4300						
Eile Edit View Favorites Tools Help						
🕒 Back 🔹 🕥 👻 🏂 🔎 Search 🌔 Folder	s 🕼 🌶 🗙 🍤 🛄-					
Address C:\Dell\Vista Drivers Package\E4300			•	→ Go		
Folders ×	Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Dal		
🗆 🚞 Dell 📃	🚞 vista		File Folder	3/3		
🖂 🔂 Vista Drivers Package	Manifest.xml	8 KB	XML Document	3/2		
🖃 🗁 E4300	🗐 readme.txt	1 KB	Text Document	3/2		
🗆 🛅 vista						
표 🧰 x64						
🖂 🚞 x86						
🛨 🧰 audio 👘						
🕀 🧰 displays						
🗄 🗀 input						
🗄 🗀 modem						
🗉 🚞 network						
🗉 🧰 Security						
🗄 🧰 storage						
📃 🕀 🖬 Video 🔽	•			F		
3 objects (Disk free space: 79.4 GB)		8.26 KB	Ny Computer	1.		

Figure 2: Readme.txt and Manifest.xml file location

Grouping content in this manner provides the customer the ability to remove any architecturespecific folder that is not required for a particular model in their environment. The listing granularity provides the flexibility to replace any archive device drivers in the future if needed. Figure 3 provides an overview of the architecture-specific folder structure.

rite Linkr	Name 🔺	Ŧ	Date modified	•	Туре	-	Size	Ŧ	
ite Links	b57nd60x		4/3/2008 6:14 AM		Security Catalog		55 k	(B	
cuments	🗿 b57nd60x		4/2/2008 6:24 PM		Setup Information		153 k	(B	
ctures	🚳 b57nd60x.sys		3/28/2008 5:44 AM		System File		206 k	(B	
usic	release		3/23/2009 12:20 PM	Λ	DAT File		1 1	(B	
ore »									
ers 🗸									
🗆 🌗 vista 📃									
표 퉬 x64									
🖃 퉲 x86									
🕀 鷆 audio									
🕀 🌗 displays									
🕀 퉲 input									
🕀 🌗 modem 🔤									
🗆 🍌 network									
🌗 R186823									
🕀 🌗 r189103									
퉬 R194571									
🕒 R197540									

Figure 3: Architecture-specific folder structure overview

MS SCCM 2007 Operational Details

The following sections describe how an I/T administrator can customize MS SCCM 2007 to better manage the Dell hardware in their environment.

Heterogeneous customer environments require identification of Dell systems in order to target OS-deployment task sequences. SCCM 2007 provides a built-in capability to group servers/clients by OS types; create groups of all systems running Windows 2008 Advanced Server or Windows XP OS systems in the network. These groups are called manageable collections. A collection represents a single view of network assets based on certain predefined grouping criteria. IT administrators can create hardware-focused grouping criteria using the existing information in the SCCM repository database gathered by the WMI inventory scan on managed systems.

Larger enterprise customers typically have multiple Dell models spanning several generations. Administrators can use the model names/IDs to group by creating their own collection; such as a corporate network that has several hundred Dell E4300s running as part of their managed network.

Such a hardware-centric organization of systems offers following advantages from systems management perspective:

- Better targeting of the Dell systems software released
- Reduced network traffic by targeting only systems that need the software
- Simplify deployment by phasing updates across different collections
- Provide isolation for mission critical systems that can be managed using the same centralized management software

Network administrators can also set up their own test beds that contain different types of Dell systems for pre-deployment testing of system software update packs that occur before distributing these updates in the production environment.

WinPE Driver Management

Support for a new model may require that corresponding network and mass storage driver support be added to the Windows preinstallation environment (WinPE) within MS SCCM 2007. WinPE modifications entail the addition of network and storage drivers to the native SCCM WinPE image, and creation of a customized WinPE. As a best practice always keep the network and storage drivers in an isolated directory so it can be upgraded only when newer models are added to the network. Figure 4 shows a recommended WinPE driver storage hierarchy for Dell systems in a potentially heterogeneous customer environment.



Figure 4: WinPE driver storage

Creation of any custom WinPE results in the finalization of the WinPE Wim that implies that the image no longer can be modified. In order to avoid the need to build a WinPE per client platform, it is recommended to create a directory structure for storage and network drivers. The drivers included in the WinPE directory are the same as the ones used for the system cabs. **NOTE:** The WinPE included in MS SCCM 2007 requires the Windows Vista-based storage and network drivers. For more details on the WinPE build process, visit the following Web address:

http://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/bb680372.aspx

Dell will also release a WinPE 2.0 Drivers Cab separate from a Platform Cab to help customers easily add support Platform Storage and Network for the Dell Client Platforms. This cab will be released on a quarterly basis and will be backwards compatible. Customers can use this cab to

enable Network and Storage Driver support in their pre-OS environment as needed. For the latest release of the WinPE Drivers Cab, please visit <u>http://support.dell.com</u> or visit Dell Tech Center and search for "WinPE Driver Cab".

Best Practices for Managing Add-On Drivers

MS SCCM 2007 provides several mechanisms for managing system level drivers:

- 1. Auto-apply drivers by importing in raw format
 - a. Uses the Import Drivers wizard and imports each driver from the extracted CAB into the MS SCCM 2007 driver store
 - b. Once the drivers have been imported, the OS deployment task sequence can use plug-and-play enumeration to apply needed drivers
- 2. Auto-apply drivers using categories
 - a. Uses the Import Drivers wizard and imports each driver from the extracted CAB into assigned categories
 - b. Application of drivers to different models is tied to the predefined categories.
- 3. Apply driver packages using model/OS combinations
 - a. This process involves using the model and/or OS combination to predefine a package
 - b. The driver package is then made available to the OS deployment task sequence based on a simple WMI query that matches the model to the driver package set

Dell recommends using model/OS (option 3) combinations for the following reasons:

- Creating the driver package setup helps to maintain different versions of driver package sets as released by Dell
- Individual driver packages using model + OS + architecture provide the flexibility to update only the drivers with known issues

The following screens show the process highlighted in Option 3. This option enables creating Driver Packages without actually importing them into the SCCM Driver Database Repository.

New Driver Package		×
Specify the following i	nformation for the new driver package.	
		_
<u>N</u> ame:	E4300 XP x86 Drivers	
Comm <u>e</u> nt:		
	J	
Specify a network pat	h (UNC) where ConfigMgr will maintain drivers added to this package.	.
Driver package source	e: rr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86 Browse	
Example (\\servernam	e\sharename)	
	OK Cancel Help	
		_//

The above example shows an example where the E4300-XP-A00.cab has been extracted to a local directory on the SCCM Host machine. The directory itself is available as a UNC Share for access via the SCCM 'New Driver Package Creation Wizard'. The following section walks through the details of creating a driver package for SCCM Deployment:-

- 1. Extract the Cab to a shared folder on the Local Server where SCCM is installed.
- 2. Ensure that the folder is accessible via UNC reference
- 3. Right Click on 'Driver Packages' in SCCM Console and select the option to create 'New Driver Package'
- 4. Provide an appropriate name to reflect the contents of Driver package. For e.g. in the above example, the Driver package would be named as 'E4300 XP x86 Drivers'
- In the Driver Package Source, specify the UNC path to the share. In the example above the UNC path would be <u>\\cosnfigmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers</u> Package\E4300\xp\x86
- 6. Once you select 'OK', a driver package will be created.
- 7. Once the driver package has been created, ensure that the distribution points points are updated for making the drivers available to the task sequence steps.

Setting Up Storage Drivers for OS Boot

Given the way in which mass storage drivers are handled by the operating system prior to Windows Vista, it is recommended that for those operating systems the second option of autoapply using categories be used. The Windows XP OS setup requires that the mass storage device be physically inserted in order to boot into the deployed OS image. Once the target system OS has booted, it will run the plug-and-play sequence to install the remaining drivers. The following steps show an example of the storage driver setup using categories:

1. Select the driver category and an appropriate name. Figure 5 shows an example of the E4300 XP x86 storage category.

New Driver Package		×
Specify the following i	nformation for the new driver package.	
		_
<u>N</u> ame:	E4300 XP x86 Storage	
Comm <u>e</u> nt:		
	1	
Specify a petwork pet	h (LINC) where ConfigMar will maintain drivers added to this package	
		- I
Driver package source	e: [!(conrigmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP X86 Storage PackageBrowse	1
Example (\\servernam	e(sharename)	
	OK Cancel Help	

Figure 5: Example of the E4300 XP x86 storage category

2. Select the source for the storage driver. The storage driver source needs to be separate from where the content was extracted. The reason for this is that MS SCCM 2007 will take the entire directory contents and create a GUID to track the package. Figure 6 shows the source selection window.

Import New Driver Wizard		×
Locate Driver		
Locate Driver Driver Details Add Driver to Packages Add Driver to Boot Images	This wizard allows you to import one or more drivers. You can let ConfigMgr find all drivers in the given network path or specify a specific driver to import.	
Summary Progress Confirmation	Source folder: Drivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage Browse	
	Source:	
4 ()	< Previous Next > Enish Canc	el

Figure 6: Source selection window

- 3. Once the drivers have been imported, assign them to the appropriate categories. Assigning drivers to categories provides two benefits:
 - a. Create a system-agnostic task sequence, and then assign categories based on WMI queries for hardware detection. Use of categories enables administrators to specify which drivers are available to be applied in an OSD task sequence when using the Auto-Apply-Driver capability.
 - b. Ease future database maintenance when the models are decommissioned and the SQL database needs to be cleaned up for older/ non-applicable driver entries.

Figure 7 shows the driver details window where drivers are assigned to categories.

Import New Driver Wizard			×
Driver Details			
Locate Driver	Th - 6-11	ing data was will be to provide de	
Driver Details	I ne rollov	ving grivers will be imported:	
Add Driver to Packages		\\configmarr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\5000	
Add Driver to Boot Images	- -	\\configmarr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\5400	
Summary	<u> </u>	\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\852.inf	
Progress		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\855.inf	
Confirmation		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\865.inf	
		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\915.inf	
		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\915M	
		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\945.inf	
		\\configmgrr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xp\x86\storage\R182522\945G	
	V	\\configmarr2\DellDrivers\XP Drivers Package\E4300\xn\x86\storage\B182522\965g	-
	🔽 <u>E</u> nabl	e these drivers and allow computers to install them	
	<u>A</u> ssign th	is driver to one or more categories for filtering.	_
	e4300",	"storage", "x86", "xp"	
↓		<pre> <u> Previous <u> Next > </u> Einish Cancel </u></pre>	

Figure 7: Driver details window

Setting up Hardware-Agnostic Boot Controller Step

For operating systems prior to Windows Vista, mass storage device driver setup step may be required; it will depend upon the native inclusion status of the driver for the boot configuration selected. E-Series platforms support system operation in ATA, AHCI or IRRT mode. Appropriate drivers need to be selected to ensure that the OS image boot occurs correctly. The mass storage device driver selection in each case needs to match the boot device selected in the BIOS.

Table 1 shows the correlation between drivers and the BIOS boot device mode.

Pre-setup Storage Driver	Model Selection	E-Series BIOS Setting
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA AHCI	Intel(R) ESB2 SATA AHCI	ATA
Controller	Controller	
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA AHCI	Intel (R) ICH9R/DO/DH SATA	ATA
Controller	AHCI Controller	
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA AHCI	Intel (R) ICH9M-E/M SATA	ATA or AHCI
Controller	AHCI Controller	
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA RAID	Intel (R) ESB2 RAID AHCI	ATA
Controller	Controller	
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA RAID	Intel (R) ICH8R/ ICH9R/	ATA
Controller	ICH10R SATA RAID	
	Controller	
Intel(R) ESB2 SATA RAID	Intel (R) ICH8M-E/ ICH9M-E	ATA or IRRT
Controller	SATA RAID Controller	

Table 1: Drive	r and BIOS	boot device	mode
----------------	------------	-------------	------

Note: Failure to select the appropriate pre-setup storage driver on Windows XP systems may result in a continuous reboot with the following error: 0x0000007B (INACCESSIBLE_BOOT_DEVICE).

Figure 8 is a sample setup to boot any E-series system regardless of the BIOS mode setup.



Figure 8: Sample setup to boot E-series system regardless of BIOS mode setup

Figure 9 is an example of a storage driver setup window.

E4300 XP x86 Task Sequence Editor					_ 🗆 ×
Add - Remove	Properties	Options			
Add • Remove	Properties Type: <u>N</u> ame: <u>D</u> escription Select the setup. Driver Pac Driver Driver This d <u>M</u> odel □ Do un where	Options Ap	ply Driver Package ply Storage Drivers intaining drivers to 00 XP x86 Storage driver within the p ta operating system ESB2 SATA AHCI C al for Pre-Vista ope ICH9M-E/M SATA / on of unsigned driv	Package	Iuring Windows Browse to be installed
		ок	Cancel	Apply	Help

Figure 9: Sample storage driver setup window

'Note: SCCM Infrastructure may sometimes be out-of-date with the Cab signing infrastructure requirements or may be missing QFE which may cause systems to pause or require user intervention for 'validation of unsigned drivers' during Deployment. Dell recommends administrators select the 'unattended installation unsigned drivers' option above to avoid systems halting during deployment for signature validation.

Apply QFE/Hotfix in OSD Task Sequence

Microsoft releases hot fixes, also called QFE, to fix certain OS-related hardware issues. The release of the QFEs determines whether they will be in the next service pack. Table 2 contains a list of QFEs that are not present in the SP2/SP3 XP releases, and are needed to correctly enable audio on E-Series systems. If the identified QFEs aren't part of the base image, they need to be added to the installed OS during an OS-deployment task sequence to ensure proper hardware functioning.

OS	QFE	Download Link						
Windows XP 64 Bit SP1	KB901105	http://support.microsoft.com/kb/901105						
Window XP 32 Bit (SP2	KB835221	http://support.microsoft.com/kb/835221						
/SP3)								

Table 2: Required QFEs for audio on E-series systems

NOTE: The QFEs and hot fixes need to be applied as soon as the OS has booted with the appropriate storage drivers, but before any of the add-on drivers are applied. This will ensure that the appropriate the PnP device enumeration and driver matching occurs during deployment.

Putting it All-Together

Here is a step-by-step summary to deploy a custom image created by any organization. For the purposes of the walk-through, E4300 is the model that will have Window XP Professional Service Pack 3 OS image deployed to it.

- 1. Ensure that the appropriate OS WIM images are in place for deployment.
- 2. Create a task sequence with appropriate title E4300 XP SP3 OS Deployment.
- 3. Let the wizard create the default steps
- 4. Once the task sequence has been created, choose to edit the task sequence
- 5. Insert a mass storage device driver setup step using Table 1. As a best practice, add all the possible boot device configuration combinations so that the remote target system will be setup regardless of the BIOS boot configuration setup.
- 6. Add the steps to install the needed QFE as outlined previously.
- 7. Next add steps for additional add-on drivers. Multiple add-on drivers steps to match the driver package with the target OS can be created. This would allow for the same task sequence to be used for multiple Dell systems.
- 8. A single task sequence can be executed on multiple machines by using the targeted deployment of the driver packages based on the system Model. For example, an XP driver package for E4300 will be applied only if the following WMI query is true: *select Model from Win32_ComputerSystem where Model = "Latitude E4300"*
- Dell also recommends installing the 'Dell Systems Software' (DSS) to get the latest applicable software updates for your specific system. To download the DSS, please visit <u>http://support.dell.com</u> and select your system model to download the appropriate version for your system.
- 10. Enabling of Bluetooth functionality for e.g. Wireless on systems that have the Devices included require installation of supporting software to enable different profiles. Bluetooth application software is not natively included in the cabs and needs to be downloaded and distributed once the system is operational. Bluetooth application software can be located at http://support.dell.com > System Model → Network → Wireless or alternatively from http://support.dell.com → System Model → Communication Category
- Dell also recommends downloading the Touch point application software for advanced touchpad functionality from <u>http://support.dell.com/</u> → System Model → Input Device Drivers.
- 12. Install any add-on software that is deemed necessary by downloading it from http://support.dell.com in a Dell Update Package (DUP) format.

Once the above steps have been completed, the OS can be kept up-to-date using the Dell update packages for the particular system.

CAB Editing Tools

I/T administrators will need to extract the CABs, and only add drivers that are needed for the configurations they support. Following sections list recommended CAB management tools.

Windows Explorer supports native viewing of CAB contents. Users can also use WinZip to examine the contents of the cab.

Optionally Microsoft provides a couple of tools via the Windows XP Service Pack 2 Support Tools to examine the cabinet files. Extraction tools (CabArc and Extract) are available from Microsoft at the following location

http://www.microsoft.com/downloads/details.aspx?FamilyId=49AE8576-9BB9-4126-9761-BA8011FABF38&displaylang=en.

- CAB Management Tool from Microsoft
 Using CabArc to extract the driver contents and maintain directory structure:
 *CabArc.exe -p x <cab file path> *.* <output path>
 (e.g. C:\Cabarc.exe -p x C:\E4300-Vista-A00.cab *.* C:\drivers\)*
- Extract Utility from Microsoft Once you are in the directory where you want to extract, enter the following command: extract /Y /E E4300-Vista-A00.cab

Supported Dell Hardware and Operating Systems

Table 3 lists the operating system support matrix for E-Series system. **N/A** means that the combination has not been qualified for the system model.

	Vista		XP SP3	XP SP2	
	32-Bit	64-bit	32-Bit	32-Bit	64-Bit
Latitude					
E4200	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	N/A
E4300	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	N/A
E5400	Yes	N/A	Yes	Yes	N/A
	Yes	N/A	Yes	Yes	N/A
E5500					
E6400	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
E6400	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
ATG					
E6500	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
XT2	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	N/A

Precision:								
M6400	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes			
M4400	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes			
M2400	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes			
Note: Vista 32 includes all versions of Vista including basic, ultimate, and enterprise. XP2 - 32 bit includes XP Professional								

This list is current as of the release date of this whitepaper. Visit http://support.dell.com for the most up-to-date list. You can also visit the Dell Tech Center (

<u>http://www.delltechcenter.com/page/Microsoft+System+Center</u>), and search for "Dell System Deployment CABs" for information on additional CABs that may be available.

Summary

The Dell Client System Deployment CABs provide administrators with consolidated operating system driver packs to deploy to the various operating systems. The packages are designed to ease the complexity associated with identifying applicable OS deployment drivers, and to have an OS up and running on Dell hardware quickly. This helps minimize administrative downtime by:

- Provide a single component for download with which to manage deployment
- Ensure that the hardware is functional post-deployment without supporting applications
- Provide flexibility to manage and update drivers at a device level

References

<u>SCCM 2007 Product Overview</u> – Microsoft Corporation <u>Operating System Deployment in Configuration Manager</u> – Microsoft Corporation